
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, December 4, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held November 6, 2023 
• Executive Session held November 6, 2023 

b. Approve Newly Elected Officials Training for Sandy Sawyer 
c. Approve FY 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) 
d. Approve Resolution #R2023-08 to Open a OneGeorgia Special Purpose Grant Bank Account 
e. Approve to Ratify Changes to the Agreement with the Dawsonville History Museum 

 

8. Downtown Development Authority Board Appointments 
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Consideration for Approval of the FY 2022-2023 Audit 
10. Request for Special Use of City Property 
11. Parking on City Streets  
12. Request to Modify the Restrooms at the Dawsonville History Museum  
13. Lease Agreement between the City of Dawsonville and The Station House Restaurant Inc. 
14. Request to Modify Grandaddy Mimms Lease Agreement  

 
 

15. Ordinance No. 08-2023: An Ordinance To Amend The Infrastructure Dedication Ordinance Of The City Of 
Dawsonville, Georgia, To Provide For An Effective Date, And For Other Purposes (First Reading: 
November 6, 2023; Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: December 4, 2023) 
 

16. Ordinance No. 09-2023: An Ordinance To Amend The Parking Ordinances Of The City Of Dawsonville, 
Georgia, To Provide For An Effective Date, And For Other Purposes (First Reading: November 6, 2023; 
Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: December 4, 2023) 

 
 

    EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED     

    RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED    

    ADJOURNMENT 
  

 
A Special Called Joint Meeting with the DCBOC will be held on December 8, 2023 at 10:00 am 

 
The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, December 18, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held November 6, 2023 
• Executive Session held November 6, 2023 

b. Approve Newly Elected Officials Training for Sandy Sawyer 
c. Approve FY 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) 
d. Approve Resolution R2023-08 to Open a OneGeorgia Special Purpose Grant Bank 

Account 
e. Approve to Ratify Changes to the Agreement with the Dawsonville History Museum 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 6, 2023 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 6, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 4 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.    

2. ROLL CALL:  Present were Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips,  
Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly 
Banister, Planning Director Jameson Kinley, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility Director 
Jacob Barr, Downtown Development Director Amanda Edmondson and Finance Director Robin 
Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember French. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  City Manager Bolz provided an update on the health of Mayor Eason. Director 
Edmondson reported on a community wide event called Light Up Dawsonville which will be sponsored 
by the Downtown Development Authority and other sponsors.  It will be a decorating contest with cash 
prizes and all proceeds will go to The Place in Dawsonville.  City Manager Bolz reported on the tree 
lighting, jingle market and parade which will begin on Saturday, November 18, 2023 starting at 2:00 
pm.   
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  Mike Turner, 1090 Oak Haven Drive, Roswell – He is representing B&K Turner 
Family LLP and handed a letter to the City Council.  He stated he is responding to a letter from the 
City which was provided earlier this week during a pre-construction meeting. 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a - d) made by 
W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 18, 2023 
• Executive Session held September 18, 2023 
• Regular Meeting held October 2, 2023 
• Special Called Meeting held October 23, 2023 

b. Approve Historic Preservation Commission Reappointments 
• Angie Smith – Three year term through 12/31/2026 
• Sarah Carte – Three year term through 12/31/2026 

c. Approve Planning Commission Reappointment 
• Anna Tobolski – Two year term 01/01/2024 – 12/31/2025 

d. Approve Acceptance of AEMC Economic Development Donation 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council recognized Tracy Smith as the September 
Employee of the Month, the Public Works Department as the October Employee of the Month and 
Hayden Harris as the Summer Employee of the Quarter.  Service awards were presented to Amanda 
Edmondson for one year of service, Jon Davis and Clay Moss for five years of service, Bob Bolz for 
seven years of service and Sara Beacham for fifteen years of service. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. EXTENDING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF DEVELOPMENT AND 
BUILDING PERMITS:  Attorney Tallant explained the purpose of the item is to determine if the 
Council would like to extend the temporary moratorium.  The impact fee study has been completed 
and reported on with a recommendation from GMRC; the extension of the moratorium would be 
utilized to develop an ordinance to implement the impact fees and explore working with the County 
regarding said fees.  
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  No one spoke in favor of or opposition to the agenda item.  Motion to close the public hearing 
made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 6, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 4 
 

Motion to approve Resolution #R2023-07 to extend the temporary moratorium through February 19, 
2024 made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried two in favor (French, Illg) with one opposed 
(Phillips) (Exhibit “A”) 

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. FY 2022-2023 AUDIT PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL:  Rachel Miller, CPA from Alexander, 
Almand & Bangs, presented the audit report of the City’s financial statements of the governmental 
activities for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 and reviewed some key areas of the 
audit.  The City received a clean opinion of the financial statements.  This item will be presented for 
approval at a future City Council meeting.  

 

11. REQUEST FOR SPECIAL USE OF CITY PROPERTY:  Planning Director Kinley presented the 
request to utilize the City’s property located at TMP #D01 033 for the purpose of public parking which 
would also serve the future Dawsonville Charity Poker Room who made the request to use it.  
Discussion occurred regarding the construction of a potential public parking space and what would 
also need to be considered, such as lighting, sidewalks, stormwater, etc. and whether or not that 
would be the best use for the property.  Councilmember Phillips stated the group requesting to use 
the property would be responsible for the cost of turning it into a public parking space but the City 
could take it back at any time. 

 

Motion to table the request to the December 4, 2023 City Council meeting made by M. French; second 
by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

12. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) 
tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone 
from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning 
of R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 
2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. Tabled indefinitely on April 18, 2022; On August 7, 2023 
item was removed from table and placed on the August 21, 2023 agenda.  Item tabled until the 
September 18, 2023 City Council meeting; tabled again until the October 16, 2023 City Council 
meeting which was subsequently cancelled due to no quorum.  
 

Planning Director Kinley presented the request.  City Council discussed various specifics concerning 
the property; Mike Turner also spoke as the applicant.  
 

Motion to approve ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043 with a stipulation to develop an emergency 
access entrance with a gate for emergency personnel use only off Turner Drive and to extend Allen 
Street, which would dead end at the subdivision’s amenities in order to have two main entrances to 
the subdivisions with no entrances on Perimeter Road made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote 
carried two in favor (Phillips, Illg) with one opposed (French). (Exhibit “B”) 

 

13. ORDINANCE NO. 08-2023: AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEDICATION 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST READING: NOVEMBER 6, 2023; SECOND 
READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: DECEMBER 4, 2023):  Attorney Tallant read the 
first reading of Ordinance No. 08-2023. 
 

14. ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023: AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE PARKING ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST READING: NOVEMBER 6, 2023; SECOND READING AND 
CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: DECEMBER 4, 2023):  Attorney Tallant read the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 09-2023.  Councilmember Illg asked if a car parked in their driveway but still on the 
sidewalk would be in violation of the ordinance; Attorney Tallant stated yes as the ordinance is 
currently written it would be a violation. The ordinance would need to be changed before approving if 
the Council desired to make an exception in those cases. 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 6, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 4 
 

15. REQUEST FOR ANNEXATION FEE WAIVER FROM DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF 
EDUCATION:  Motion to approve the annexation fee waiver request of $400 from Dawson County 
Board of Education made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

16. CONSIDERATION OF AN OPEN ANNEXATION PERIOD:  Motion to approve a no charge 
annexation period for island properties from December 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024 made by M. 
French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

17. PARKING ON CITY STREETS:  Director Hansard reported that he only received feedback from two 
subdivisions regarding their process for dealing with parking on their streets.   

 

Motion to table the items to the December 4, 2023 City Council meeting in order to do more research 
made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

18. SALE OF SURPLUS COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:  Director Gazaway reported on obtaining a range 
of values for the Council to determine the cost to buy back their iPads for personal use.   
 

Motion to approve the cost of $100 to buy back their iPads made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

    STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz reported there were two leak adjustments totaling 
$406.45.   
 

20. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Finance Director Gazaway presented the financial 
reports representing fund balances and activity through October 31, 2023.   

 

    EXECUTIVE SESSION     

 At 5:55 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential/pending 
litigation, land acquisition and personnel was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

 At 6:31 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   
 

 Motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.      

    ADJOURNMENT 
 

                  At 6:33 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips. Vote                    
carried unanimously in favor. 

 
  Approved this 4th day of December 2023 

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 6, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 

         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
  

 





Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  APPROVE NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS TRANING FOR SANDY SAWYER  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO APPROVE NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS TRANING FOR COUNCILMEMBER ELECT POST #3, 
SANDY SAWYER.   

     
     EXPENSES FROM 02/27 – 03/01/2024 INCLUDE REGISTRATION, TRAINING, LODGING, PER DIEM 

AND MILEAGE.      

    APPROXIMATE TOTAL IS $1,343.00 
 

   TO BE PAID OUT OF FY2024 GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    APPROXIMATE BREAKDOWN      

    TRAINING    $  450 
    LODGING    $  370 
    PER DIEM    $  440  (MEAL AND DAILY PER DIEM) 
    MILEAGE    $    83_  
     $1,343 
            

     OPTIONS: 
 
    RECOMMEND APPROVAL – TRANING IS MANDATORY 
 
 

       
 

      
REQUESTED BY:  Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    APPROVE FY 2024 LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE FY 2024 LMIG APPLICATION AND HAVE THE MAYOR PRO-TEM 
SIGN THE DOCUMENTS TO SOIL CEMENT AND  REPAVE THE ROAD AND REPAIR SIDEWALKS ON 
MAPLE STREET SOUTH AND TO APPROVE THE 30% MATCH OF $14,008.45.   

  
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• FY 2024 LMIG FUNDING, INCLUDING 30% MATCH IS $60,703.27 
 

• 30% MATCH OF $14,008.45 IS BUDGETED IN THE FY 2024 SPLOST BUDGET 
 

• TOTAL PROJECT COST IS APPROXIMATELY $500,000  
 

• THE FUNDS WILL BE COMBINED WITH PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FY 2023 LMIG FUNDS AND 
FUTURE FY 2025 LMIG FUNDS TO SUPPORT THIS PROJECT 
 

 
 

 

     OPTIONS: 
           
    
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
  STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL AS PRESENTED 
 
 

      
 

REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7c     
 

 

 







Revised 6/1/2020 
10/18/2013 

Page 1 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 

MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) 

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___ 
TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY. ALL SECTIONS MUST BE COMPLETED. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INFORMATION 

Date of Application: 

Name of local government:   

Address:   

Contact Person and Title:   

Contact Person’s Phone Number: 

Contact Person’s Fax Number:   

Contact Person’s Email:   

Is the Priority List attached? 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 

I,                                                                             (Name), the                                                               (Title), on behalf of 

     (Local Government), who being duly sworn do swear that the information given 

herein is true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  Local Government swears and certifies that it has read and 

understands the LMIG General Guidelines and Rules and that it has complied with and will comply with the same. 

Local government further swears and certifies that it has read and understands the regulations for the Georgia Planning 

Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. § 45-12-200, et seq.), Service Delivery Strategy Act (O.C.G.A. § 36-70-20, et seq.), and the Local 

Government Budgets and Audits Act (O.C.G.A. 36-81-7 et seq.) and will comply in full with said provisions. Local 

government further swears and certifies that the roads or sections of roads described and shown on the local government’s 

Project List are dedicated public roads and are part of the Public Road System in said county/city. Local government 

further swears and certifies that it complied with federal and/or state environmental protection laws and at the completion of 

the project(s), it met the match requirements as stated in the Transportation Investment ACT (TIA). 

Further, the local government shall be responsible for any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to negligent acts, 

errors, or omissions related to the designs, drawings, specifications, work and other services furnished by or on behalf 

of the local government pursuant to this Application (“Loss”). To the extent provided by law, the local government further 

agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and the State of Georgia from all suits or claims that may arise 

from said Loss. 



Revised 6/1/2020 
10/18/2013 

Page 2 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 

MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) 

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___ 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 

If the local government fails to comply with these General Guidelines and Rules, or fails to comply with its Application and 

Certification, or fails to cooperate with the auditor(s) or fails to maintain and retain sufficient records, the DEPARTMENT 

may, at its discretion, prohibit the local government from participating in the LMIG program in the future and may pursue any 

available legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the LMIG funds. Furthermore, if in the estimation of the DEPARTMENT, 

a roadway or bridge shows evidence of failure(s) due to poor workmanship, the use of substandard materials, or the 

failure to follow the required design and construction guidelines as set forth herein, the Department may pursue any available 

legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the allocated LMIG funds or prohibit local government from participating in the 

LMIG program until such time as corrections are made to address the deficiencies or reimbursement is made.  All projects 

identified on the Project list shall be constructed in accordance with the Department’s Standard Specifications of 

Transportation Systems (Current Edition), Supplemental Specifications (Current Edition), and Special Provisions. 

Local Government: 

E-Verify Number 

(Signature) Sworn to and subscribed before me, 

(Print) This day of , 20 . 

Mayor / Commission Chairperson 

In the presence of: 

(Date) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SEAL:

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:

NOTARY SEAL: 



FY _________ LMIG PROJECT LIST           COUNTY / CITY ___________________________

Road Name Beginning Ending Length 
(Miles)

Description of Work Project Cost Project Let 
Date



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE RESOLUTION #R2023-08 TO OPEN A ONEGEORGIA SPECIAL 

PURPOSE GRANT BANK ACCOUNT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
    TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #R2023-08 TO ESTABLISH A BANK ACCOUNT TO DEPOSIT 

AND DISTRIBUTE FUNDS FROM ONEGEORIGA SPECIAL PURPOSE GRANT RECEIPTS 
 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• GRANT IS FOR THE SPECIAL PURPOSE PROJECT THE CITY IS MANAGING ON BEHALF 
OF THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Director____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7d     
 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION R2023-08 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA ESTABLISHING A 
BANK ACCOUNT FOR ONEGEORGIA SPECIAL PURPOSE GRANT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville and the Dawsonville History Museum have entered into an 

agreement pertaining to constructing a new exhibit on the premises leased by Dawsonville History Museum;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville is applying for a grant from the OneGeorgia Authority on 

behalf of the Dawsonville History Museum to fund the project and as the grant recipient will be managing 
the administrative and financial matters of said grant;  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville does hereby authorize the Mayor Pro-Tem to execute 

documents to open and/or close checking accounts as needed; 
 
WHEREAS, a separate bank account must be established for the purpose of deposits and 

distributions of the OneGeorgia Authority Grant receipts;  
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Dawsonville to open 

an interest-bearing bank account with United Community Bank for the purpose of deposits and distributions 
of the OneGeorgia Authority Grant receipts due the City of Dawsonville.  The authorized signatures on said 
account are to be John Walden and Robert Bolz.   

 
SO RESOLVED this 4th day of December 2023. 

 
        ________________________________ 
        Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
        ________________________________ 
        Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
        ________________________________ 
        William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 

 
        ________________________________ 
                   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 

 
        _______________________________ 
        Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE TO RATIFY CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE 

DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    
TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO RATIFY CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE 

DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• ORIGINAL AGREEMENT WITH THE MUSEUM FOR THE SPECIAL PURPOSE GRANT 
ADMINISTRATION AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT WAS APPROVED ON 09/18/2023   

• SINCE THEN, THE MUSUEM CHANGED THE SCOPE OF THE PROJECT AND THE 
ORIGINAL AGREEMENT HAS BEEN REVISED 

• COUNCILMEMBERS PREVIOUSLY AGREED TO CHANGES WITH REQUEST TO RATIFY 
AT THE NEXT CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7e     
 

 

 













                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    ____ Other   

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve:    ____  Enterprise Fund    ____  General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE TWO NEW APPOINTMENTS OF DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMBERS: 

 

1. TREY THOMAS: FILL THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF KEVIN HAMMOND THROUGH 
12/31/2025 

2. MARY WRIGHT: FOUR YEAR TERM – 01/01/2024 – 12/31/2027 (FORMELY KEITH 
HUDSON) 

 

TO APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEMBERS FOR 
FOUR YEARS: 
 

• DWIGHT GILLELAND FOR THE TERM OF 01/01/2024 – 12/31/2027 
• JONATHAN CAMPBELL FOR THE TERM OF 01/01/2024 – 12/31/2027 

 

BOTH HAVE SERVED A PREVIOUS TERM AND WOULD LIKE TO SERVE ANOTHER TERM   
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

TREY THOMAS AND MARY WRIGHT HAVE BOTH BEEN VETTED AS PER THE CITY’S PROCESS 
 
 

     OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:   
 
APPROVE AS REQUESTED 
 
 

 
 
REQUESTED BY: Amanda Edmondson, Director of Downtown Development __ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8     
 

 

X 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE FY 2022-2023 AUDIT                 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
      TO REQUEST CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE FY 2023 AUDIT 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• DRAFT AUDIT WAS PRESENTED TO CITY COUNCIL FOR REVIEW ON 11/06/2023 
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Robin Gazaway, Finance Director_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  9   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR SPECIAL USE OF CITY PROPERTY 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:   12/04/2023       
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  TABLED AT THE 11/06/2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
A REQUEST TO UTILIZE CITY PROPERTY TO CONSTRUCT A PARKING LOT FOR PUBLIC 
USE THAT WOULD ALSO SERVE THE FUTURE DAWSONVILLE CHARITY POKER ROOM 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
• PROPERTY IS IN POST 2 CITY COUNCIL MEMBER WILLIAM ILLG DISTRICT 
• PROPERTY LOCATION: NE CORNER OF INTERSECTION AT CHURCH ST AND LLOYD 

SEAY STREET SOUTH; TMP D01 033 
• VACANT LOT 
• CITY OF DAWSONVILLE PURCHASED PROPERTY IN 2007 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
REQUESTED BY: _________Amanda Edmondson, Director of Downtown Development_________   

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 





1 

 

 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
PLANNING STAFF REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

Applicant ...................................................................Joshua Pender (C/O The Dawsonville 

Charity Poker Room, “DCPR”) 

 

Request ......................................................................To utilize city property to construct a 

parking lot for public use that would also 

serve the future Dawsonville Charity Poker 

Room 

 

Current Zoning ........................................................INST, Institutional District 

 

Size .............................................................................+/- 18,000 square feet 

 

Location ....................................................................NE corner of intersection Church Street and 

Lloyd Seay Street South 

 

Tax Parcel .................................................................D01 033 

 

 

APPLICANT PROPOSAL: 

 

The applicant is requesting to construct a gravel parking lot on City property, for the purpose of 

serving the future Dawsonville Charity Poker Room, which they intend to construct at 26 Roy 

Hall Street.  The lot would be open to the public for general use. 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES: 

 

Adjacent Land Uses Existing zoning Existing Use 

North TB Residential 

South NB Commercial  

East CBD Commercial 

West TB Residential 

 

This property abuts the City’s right of way on all sides including Church Street, Howard Avenue, 

and Lloyd Seay Street South. To the North and West are single family residences located in our 

Historic Town Business District. Across Church Street is the Christian Life Ministries Church to 



  

2 
 

the south, and Aristo Craft classic wooden boat workshop and museum to the east. In relation to 

the City, the subject property is located on the southwestern corner between our historic 

downtown and our residential neighborhoods.  

 

HISTORY: 

 

The City of Dawsonville purchased the property in 2007. According to the tax assessors’ 

website, it was first assessed as improved in 1979. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

 

The following factors must be taken into consideration for developing any parking lot in the City 

of Dawsonville pursuant to the City’s development ordinance requirements: 

 

Development Regulations 

ADA Compliance 

- Based on the intended number of parking spaces there is a required number of 

handicapped spaces (Sec. 604) 

Design Requirements (Sec. 606) 

- Surface shall be concrete or asphalt with proper drainage. 

- Each parking space shall be clearly marked. 

- A parking lot pavement setback of ten (10) feet from any public street right-of-way and 

five (5) feet from any exterior property line 

- Not less than ten (10) percent of the total area devoted to parking shall be landscaped 

open space. 

Sidewalks (Sec. 109-53) 

- Sidewalks to be provided along public streets the entire length of the property. 

- The sidewalks must be constructed to conform to the state DOT sidewalk standards. 

- Sidewalks shall be five foot wide and four inches thick. 

- Sidewalks shall have ADA compliant ramps and warning pads at intersections. The 

warning pads shall be screwed down and thermal coated. 

Lighting (Sec. 2203) 

- Lighting is required and necessary to ensure adequate safety, night vision and comfort. 

- Lighting shall not exceed certain footcandles at property line. 

- All security and parking lot lighting shall be installed such that the lamp (light-emitting 

device) is not protruding from the bottom of the fixture. 

- All light fixtures shall be installed so that the light produced is emitted downward. 

- Pole lights shall not exceed 35 feet in height and shall have box-type fixtures. 

Stormwater 

- Applicable to new development that involves the creation of 5,000 square feet or more of 

impervious cover. 

- Depending on the performance of the engineering design provided, on-site detention 

could be necessary. 

 

Walkability / Safety 

The development of this site for the intention of serving the 26 Roy Hall Street should consider 



  

3 
 

the fact that there are no sidewalks along Roy Hall nor Raymond Parks. Charity events that go 

into evening hours may necessitate the addition of street lighting and sidewalks to assure a 

reasonably safe and walkable environment for pedestrians. The rights-of-way will need to be 

researched and improvements engineered to perform accordingly. 

 

Wayfinding 

To avoid large numbers of event attended parking in unauthorized locations, wayfinding signs 

and other forms of communication are necessary to help attendees understand how to locate the 

proper parking location. 

 

Enforcement 

- The city has a public parking ordinance for enforcement purposes.  

- Chapter 13 ARTICLE IV PARKING 

 

Maintenance 

- While the initial cost of a gravel parking lot is less than a paved lot, this method of 

construction is undesirable because it requires frequent maintenance, can be problematic 

for ADA compliance, can result in poor erosion control/prevention, can cause unsafe road 

conditions and potentially property damage. 

 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: 

 

From a planning standpoint, the subject property would be an ideal location for additional 

periphery parking for the historic downtown. It is located at a transition point that buffers the 

commercial from the residential with a short walk to the West side of the square, which is 

currently under-served in terms of public parking. Major concerns include the lack of sidewalks 

and lighting to support adequate pedestrian travel.  In addition, stormwater control measures 

must be implemented to prevent site erosion and avoid unsafe road conditions.  Ultimately, the 

site is ideal for the proposed use given proper design and construction methods to meet our 

current development standards, ADA compliance, and accommodate generally foreseeable 

additional safety needs. 

  



  

4 
 

CURRENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 
 

  



  

5 
 

 

AERIAL 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PARKING ON CITY STREETS 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   ITEM TABLED FROM THE 11/06/2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
    

• ORIGINAL ITEM PRESENTED TO CITY COUNCIL ON 09/18/2023 TO DISCUSS ISSUES 
REGARDING RESIDENTS COMPLAINING ABOUT PARKED VEHICLES ON STREETS IN 
SUBDIVISIONS  

• RESPONSES RECEIVED FROM RED HAWK AND RAINHILL (SEE ATTACHED)  
• SPOKE WITH BURTS CROSSING II AND THEY HAD NO ISSUES 
• OTHER HOAS DID NOT RESPOND AND/OR THE HOA CONTACT IS UNKNOWN 

   
 

     OPTIONS:       

REQUESTING  DIRECTION ON HOW TO PROCEED TO ADDRESS THESE ONGOING ISSUES. 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:    

    RECOMMENDS ALLOWING LEGAL TO DRAFT AN ORDINANCE TO REVIEW AND CONSIDER 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director_____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   REQUEST TO MODIFY THE RESTROOMS AT THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY 

MUSEUM 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO PRESENT A REQUEST FROM THE LESSEE OF THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
TO MODIFY THE RESTROOMS 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     DETAILS ON MODIFICATION WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director_____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE AND THE 

STATION HOUSE RESTAURANT, INC.  
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE AND THE STATION HOUSE RESTAURANT 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager ______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



Page 1 of 14  

LEASE 
AGREEMENT 

 
This Lease agreement (“Lease”) is entered into effective this ______ day of 

__________, 2023 by and between THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, a Georgia municipal 

corporation, whose address is 415 Hwy. 53 East, Suite 100, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

(“Lessor”) and THE STATION HOUSE RESTAURANT INC. (“Lessee”), whose address 

is 540 Lake Center Parkway, Suite 105, Cumming, Georgia 30040. 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Lessor owns and operates certain property and facilities 

(“Premises”) located at 415 Hwy. 53 East, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534, which is known as the 

City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal Complex; and 

WHEREAS, the Premises includes several tenant spaces, including a museum and a 

retail/manufacturing/restaurant space, of which the retail/manufacturing/restaurant space 

is available for lease and suitable for Lessee's use; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to lease a portion of the 

retail/manufacturing/restaurant space, as fully depicted in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 

fully incorporated herein (“Restaurant Space”) consisting of __________ sf, to Lessee for the 

operation of a dine-in restaurant, which will be open to the public, pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of the City Lease and as allowed or provided by local, state, and federal law. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 

obligations set forth herein and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration mutually exchanged this date between parties hereto, the receipt and 

adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 



Page 2 of 14  

1. Premises and Use. Lessee shall be permitted to occupy and utilize the areas of the 

Premises depicted in Exhibit “A”, otherwise known as the Restaurant Space, for the purpose 

of operating a dine-in restaurant which shall be open to the public and maintain business 

hours as deemed appropriate by Lessee and as regulated by local, state, and federal law, so 

long as such operations do not materially interfere with the business and operations of the 

City of Dawsonville. Any use of exterior/outdoor areas may be limited during the Mountain 

Moonshine Festival held annually at the Dawsonville Municipal Complex due to the nature 

of that event.       

2. Lease Term. This Lease shall commence on _____ day of _______________, 20___ 

(“Commencement date”), for the period of t we l v e  (1 2 )  months, (“Lease Term”) 

terminating on the _____ day of __________________, 20___ (the “Termination date”). 

The foregoing notwithstanding, this lease shall renew effective the ______ day of 

_______________,  20___, for an additional term of one year up to four consecutive 

times, which renewal shall be automatic, unless either Lessee or Lessor provides notice, not 

less than ninety (90) days before the anniversary date of this Lease, that they wish to exercise 

their right to not renew the Lease for an additional term. 

 
3. Rent. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor a base rent amount as rent for the 

Restaurant Space during the Lease Term which will be as follows: 

a) One thousand and 00/100 dollars ($1,000.00) per month for the 

Restaurant Space starting the Commencement date through and including the 

Termination date. 

b) Rent will be due and payable by the 5th day of every month, and if not actually 

received by the City by the 10th of the month the rental payment shall be late. 



Page 3 of 14  

For any late payment received after the 10th of the month Lessee shall pay the City 

a five percent (5%) penalty. Penalty payment shall be due immediately and must be 

included with payment of past due rent. 

4. Parking. Lessee and its employees shall have the right to use the public parking spaces or 

parking areas near or adjacent to the City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal Complex, except to 

the extent such spaces may be utilized during the Mountain Moonshine Festival, held 

annually at the Dawsonville Municipal Complex, for festival purposes. All such parking 

shall be on a nonexclusive, non-assigned basis. Lessee shall not use or permit its 

employees or invitees to use any spaces which have been specifically reserved by Lessor 

to other tenants or for such other uses as have been designated as being restricted to certain 

uses. Lessee shall at all times comply and cause its employees and invitees to comply 

with any parking rules and regulations as Lessor may from time to time reasonably adopt. 

At no time will Lessee or its employees use any parking spaces for storage or containers 

of any type or description. At no time will Lessee, its employees, or its customers use areas 

not specifically designated for parking as parking spots or areas, or for storage, including, 

but in no way limited to, the decorative area surrounding the replica gas pumps or store 

entrances. Lessor assumes no liability or risk for any damage that may occur to the 

vehicles or other property of Lessee, its employees, customers or others in any parking 

area or common area. 

5. Storage, Store Fronts, and Unpermitted Uses/Activities. Lessee agrees to maintain 

the Restaurant Space in a clean condition. Lessee agrees to not use the Restaurant Space 

as a long-term storage facility for items, except in areas specifically designated for the 

purpose of storage, such as closets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall have the 



Page 4 of 14  

right to store agricultural products and/or empty agricultural product containers outside 

of the Restaurant Space for a period of time not to exceed five (5) days. However, such 

storage shall not impede, obstruct, or in any way interfere with the normal operations of 

the City and/or any other tenants or visitors to the Premises. At no time will Lessee store 

any item that is unnecessary for the proper operation of its business within the Restaurant 

Space or the parking area. At no time will Lessee use the parking lot, decorative area in 

front of the replica gas pumps or store fronts, or the decorative, pressed sidewalk for its 

business activities or operations. 

6. Insurance and other charges. Lessee agrees to and shall pay for general liability 

insurance and shall name the Lessor as certificate holder or additional insured under the 

policy of insurance. Lessee shall keep the general liability policy in full force and affect 

for the full Lease Term with coverage in the amount of at least $1 million per person / $2 

million per occurrence. Lessee is responsible for all other forms of insurance (i.e. 

workers comp, etc.) as may be required by law.  Lessee shall indemnify and hold 

harmless Lessor from any and all clams, damages, suits and demands, including but not 

limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses of litigation, arising out of or related 

to Lessee’s use and operation of the Restaurant Space. 

7. Improvements. To the extent Lessee desires to modify, change or improve the 

Restaurant Space for Lessee's intended use, costs shall be borne by Lessee, including but 

not limited to costs to repair/remediate the premises as part of the Construction process. 

Any plans for modifications or improvements must be presented to and approved in 

writing by Lessor prior to initiation of any change, modification or construction.  Lessee 

shall be further responsible for any and all insurance, workers compensation insurance, 

general liability insurance, contractor’s insurance, and any and all claims which may 



Page 5 of 14  

arise out of or be related to any of the construction processes associated with the 

improvements. Lessor agrees to perform the improvements described in Exhibit “B” as 

further consideration under and for the terms of this Lease. Lessee agrees to perform the 

improvements described in Exhibit “C” as further consideration under and for the terms of 

this lease.  

8. Utilities. Lessee is responsible for all utilities associated with its occupation and use of 

the Restaurant Space including, but not limited to, water, sewer, natural gas, and 

electricity. Lessee shall install and maintain at the expense thereof with any necessary 

utility meters or sub-meters at the Restaurant Space.  

9. Garbage/Dumpster Removal Services. Lessor shall provide access to Lessee to the 

Lessor’s dumpster located on the property adjacent to the Premises for Lessee’s normal 

weekly garbage usage. Lessee shall not deposit any hazardous substances in the dumpster 

or place any garbage or trash outside of the dumpster at any time. All garbage and trash 

from Lessee’s use of the Premises shall be hauled to and deposited in the dumpster by 

Lessee on at least a weekly basis. In the event Lessee’s waste production exceeds the 

current capacity of the Dawsonville Municipal Complex garbage service such that another 

dumpster is advisable in the discretion of Lessor, Lessee shall be responsible for that cost 

which will be added to the monthly amount Lessee remits to Lessor as a separate fee for 

that service. 

10. Pest Control. Lessee, at its cost, shall at all times keep the Premises free of pests. Lessee 

shall implement a program of pest control satisfactory to Lessor which may include, 

without limitation, (a) moving any furniture, fixtures, equipment, or inventory during 

inspections and spraying by Lessee’s exterminator; and (b) maintaining the Premises in a 



Page 6 of 14  

clean, trash-free and sanitary condition. Lessee further acknowledges that Lessee’s 

exterminator shall, in an environmentally safe way, perform inspections and/or spraying 

at least once every month; however, such inspections and/or spraying may be required to 

occur every two (2) weeks if Lessor deems such spraying necessary. If Lessee fails to 

promptly and fully comply with this Section, Lessor shall have the right, but not the 

obligation, to enter the Premises to perform such spraying or inspections at Lessee's 

expense. Performance of such work by Lessor shall not constitute a waiver of Lessee's 

default in failing to do the same and neither shall it entitle Lessee to any damages for any 

injury or inconvenience occasioned thereby nor to any abatement of rent. Lessee shall 

reimburse Lessor for any cost incurred by Lessor pursuant to this Section upon demand 

therefore. 

11. Security Deposit. Lessee will provide a deposit with the Lessor for the sum of one 

thousand and 00/100 dollars ($1,000) to be paid on the _____ day of ____________, 

20____, as a Security Deposit for the proper performance of all obligations of Lessee 

hereunder. Lessor shall hold the Security Deposit in a non-interest-bearing account and 

shall return the same to Lessee upon the expiration of this Lease with all obligations of 

the Lessee fully performed and completed and the premises returned to Lessor in broom 

clean undamaged condition, normal wear and tear excepted. Any cleaning or damage 

beyond normal wear and tear will first be paid for out of the security deposit before any 

balance is returned. Any damage not adequately covered by application of the security 

deposit shall be the responsibility of Lessee. 

12. Binding Effect and Severability. The provisions of this Lease shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of both parties and their respective successors and assigns. If any 



Page 7 of 14  

provision of this Lease or any application thereof shall be invalid or unenforceable, the 

remainder of this Lease and any other application of such provision shall not be affected 

thereby. 

13. Quiet Enjoyment. Upon due performance by Lessee of its covenants and agreements 

under this Lease, Lessor covenants that Lessee shall and may at all times peaceably and 

quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Restaurant Space during the Lease Term. The foregoing 

notwithstanding, Lessee shall provide Lessor with access on reasonable notice (not less 

than twenty-four hours) for the purpose of inspecting the premises, and with such access 

as may be needed on shorter notice in emergency situations. 

14. Headings. The Section headings are for convenience and reference only and shall not be 

used to limit or otherwise affect the meaning of any provision of this Lease. 

15. Counterparts. This Lease may be simultaneously executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a fully enforceable original but all of which 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

16. Governing law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Lease shall be construed in 

accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. Both parties hereby 

consent to jurisdiction and venue in Dawson County, Georgia, in any action brought to 

enforce any provision of this Lease. 

17. Relationship of P arties. Lessor and Lessee shall not be considered or deemed to be 

joint venturers or partners and neither shall have the power to bind or obligate the other 

except as set forth herein. In the event the Lessor develops a new city center during the 

lease term, the Lessor shall provide a first right-of-refusal to the Lessee to negotiate a 

lease for space within the development for the purpose of relocating the restaurant. 



Page 8 of 14  

18. Default. Lessee shall be in default if it fails to pay any rent or any other obligation when 

due to Lessor or fails to comply with any of the requirements of this Lease applicable to 

Lessee. In the event Lessee defaults, Lessor may terminate this Lease and pursue such 

remedies as are allowed by law. Included among these remedies shall be the right of 

Lessor to recover all rents owed under the Lease for the unexpired portion of the Lease 

Term. Upon a default and prior to exercising any remedy hereunder or allowed by law, 

Lessor shall provide Lessee written notice of the default and of Lessor's intent to exercise 

remedies unless the default is cured within ten (10) days following receipt of the notice 

of default. Should Lessee fail to cure the default within ten (10) days following receipt of 

the notice of default, Lessor will be immediately entitled to take possession of the 

Restaurant Space. Lessee waives any further right to notice prior to Lessor pursuing 

remedies other than those contained herein. 

Lessor shall be in default if it fails to comply with any of the requirements of this 

Lease applicable to Lessor. In the event Lessor defaults, Lessee's sole and exclusive 

remedy shall be to terminate this Lease without further recourse against Lessor. Prior to 

exercising that remedy Lessee shall provide Lessor with written notice of the default and 

of Lessee's intent to exercise its remedy unless the default is cured within ten (10) days 

following receipt of the notice of default. 

19. Guaranty. Notwithstanding the fact that Lessee is a corporation or other legal entity, 

by execution hereof, the undersigned owners, operators, members or shareholders of 

Lessee ("Guarantor") hereby personally guarantee full, proper and satisfactory 

performance of all terms of this Lease by the Lessee. Upon written notice of default of this 

Lease, Lessor shall have all rights and remedies against Guarantor as are available 

against Lessee. 



Page 9 of 14  

20. Construction. All terms used in this Lease, regardless of the number or gender in 

which they are used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number, 

singular or plural, and by other gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, as the context or 

sense of this Lease or any section, subsection, or clause herein may require as if such 

terms had been fully and properly written in such number or gender. 

21. Modification. No changes, additions, or interlineations made to this Lease shall be 

binding unless initiated by both parties.  This Lease may not be assigned, in whole or 

in part, by Lessee without the express written authorization of Lessor. 

22. Non-waiver. No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this Lease, 

and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or any other 

right, unless otherwise expressly provided herein. 

23. Time of essence. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this Lease. 
 

24. Entire Agreement. This Lease supersedes all agreements previously made between 

the parties relating to its subject matter. There are no other understandings or 

agreements between them. 

 

 

[execution on following page] 

 

 

 

 



Page 10 of 14  

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Lease effective as of the date first above 

written. 

 

LESSOR: 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  John Walden, Mayor  
 

LESSEE: THE STATION HOUSE  
RESTAURANT INC. 
 
_____________________________________ 

 
    ITS:________________________________ 
 
 

   Print Name



 

 
PERSONAL 

GUARANTY 
 

The undersigned, being the executing member of The Station House Restaurant Inc., 

for valuable consideration received, hereby unconditionally guaranties all performance and 

payment obligations of The Station House Restaurant Inc., under the terms of this Lease. 

 
 This the _____ day of ___________, 2023. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Signature of Guarantor    Printed Name of Guarantor 
  



Exhibit "A"



 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

1. Lessor shall complete build-out, including structural walls, electrical infrastructure, 
finishes, permanent fixtures, and install equipment.  

• Finishes includes floor, walls, and ceiling 
• Fixtures include bathroom, lighting fixtures, cabinetry, and countertops. 
• Sinks include bathroom sinks, mop sinks, hand-wash sink, triple dish sink 

at grease trap, and vegetable sink 
• Installed equipment includes Double Blodgett Oven, 3-4’ griddle, two (2) 

40 lbs. fryers 
2. Interior Painting: Lessor shall paint the interior of the leased premises a base color, neutral 

warm whites, beiges, or grays. Lessee may adapt such paint or may utilize various paint 
colors, designs, murals, and/or textures as Lessor may approve, which approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

  



 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 
Lessee shall provide the items needed for their day to day operations, including but not limited to, 
their own signage (as approved), point of sale equipment, furniture and décor, reach in refrigerator 
for kitchen, beverage and ice machines, dishwashing machines including all chemicals needed for 
same, warming drawer for kitchen, coffee makers, tea urns, all food preparation tables for dining 
areas and kitchen, garbage cans, non-slip mats, wire racks for kitchen dry space, all pots, pans, 
dishware, flatware, all equipment needed for preparation of food, all cleaning supplies for 
maintenance of space, regular maintenance on equipment. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   REQUEST TO MODIFY GRANDADDY MIMMS LEASE AGREEMENT  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO MODIFY GRANDADDY MIMMS LEASE AGREEMENT TO START 
THE COLLECTION OF RENT ON FEBRUARY 1, 2024  

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• ON 10/02/2023, COUNCIL APPROVED A MODIFICATION TO THE LEASE TO NOT START 
THE COLLECTION OF RENT UNTIL 30 DAYS AFTER THE APPROVAL OF THE PLANS 
BY THE FIRE MARSHAL 

• FIRE MARSHAL APPROVED PLANS A FEW WEEKS AGO, HOWEVER, THE CITY 
WOULD LIKE TO DELAY THE COLLECTION OF RENT UNTIL THE BUILDOUT IS AT 
APPROXIMATELY 75% AND ANTICIPATES THAT GOAL BY FEBRUARY 1, 2024 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL AS REQUESTED 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director_____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 08-2023: INFRASTRUCTURE DEDICATION ORDINANCE 

AMENDMENT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-2023:  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEDICATION 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

FIRST READING: NOVEMBER 6, 2023; SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: 
DECEMBER 4, 2023 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
    
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-2023 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEDICATION ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section II, Paragraph II of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia and Chapter 35 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia, the City Council of 
Dawsonville is empowered to adopt reasonable ordinances for local government upon matters not 
governed by general law and which are not inconsistent with the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia or the Charter of the City of Dawsonville; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville previously enacted a process for private developers to tender 
their infrastructure to the City of Dawsonville; and 
 
WHEREAS, the process for private developers to tender their infrastructure to the City of 
Dawsonville has a bonding component and a timing component designed to protect the City from 
sub-standard or pre-maturely failing infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, delays in the process of construction have created a situation where the City needs 
additional protection and assurance as to the condition and workmanship of the infrastructure 
before it is dedicated to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the interests of public health, safety, morals, 
convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the City of Dawsonville to update the City’s 
Infrastructure Dedication Ordinance to prohibit and provide for penalties for such conduct, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the governing body of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, does hereby amend 
its Infrastructure Dedication Ordinance as follows:  
 

SECTION I: Infrastructure Dedication 

Subpart B Land Development Regulations, Chapter 101 Land Development Regulations, Section 
101-2 of the Dawsonville Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by striking Section 101-2 in its 
entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new section 101-2, as follows: 
 
§ Sec. 101-2 Infrastructure dedication. 

(a) Definitions  
 

(1) Date of tender: The date upon which the developer tenders the systems for 
dedication to the City of Dawsonville. 

Subject Matter: Infrastructure Dedication 
Date of First Reading: November 6, 2023 
Date of Second Reading: December 4, 2023 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
(2) Deficiency: Any failure of a system to comply with the Development Code. 

 
(3) Development Code: The Development Code of the City of Dawsonville, 

latest edition. 
 

(4) Systems: Any road, water, sewer, or stormwater management system which 
a developer tenders for dedication to the City of Dawsonville. 

 
(b) Prior to the acceptance of any road, water, sewer, or stormwater management 

system (hereinafter referred to as "systems") by the City of Dawsonville, the 
following regulations must be complied with by the developer of said systems: 

 
(1) At 90 percent build-out of the development under construction, the 

developer shall tender a dedication of all systems to the City of 
Dawsonville. The City of Dawsonville shall not accept the dedication of 
said systems until the later of 15 months after the date of tender by the 
developer, or 12 months after the final inspection of the system. The City 
may accept a dedication at a later date, and nothing in this section shall be 
construed to obligate the City to accept a dedication at any time.   
 

(2) At 20 percent build-out of the development under construction, the 
developer shall post a maintenance and performance bond for the road, 
water, sewer, and stormwater management systems in the development 
equal to 20 percent of the value of the systems. The value of the systems as 
referred to in this subparagraph shall be the total cost of construction of said 
systems as determined by the city based upon information provided by the 
developer and/or the city engineer, including both materials and labor, as 
required to comply with the development code. 

 
(3) During the time between the date of tender by the developer and the 

acceptance of the dedication by the City of Dawsonville, the developer shall 
have the responsibility to maintain and repair the systems and shall maintain 
and repair the systems so as to comply with the Development Code. In any 
event, the developer shall maintain and repair the systems so as to comply 
with the requests of the Director of Development of the City of 
Dawsonville. 

 
(4) Between the 50th and 52nd week after the date of tender, the City of 

Dawsonville shall inspect the systems to ensure compliance with the 
Development Code.  For the purposes of this ordinance, this inspection shall 
be the “final inspection” referred to in § 101-2(b)(1). 

 
(5) To the extent that said inspections reveal any deficiencies in the systems 

tendered by the developer, the developer shall have until the 15th month 
after the date of tender to cure the deficiencies. If the deficiencies are not 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

cured by the developer, the City of Dawsonville shall have the right to call 
the maintenance bond and repair the facilities prior to the acceptance of 
dedication. 

 
(6) Should the maintenance bond prove to be insufficient to bring the systems 

up to compliance with the Development Code, or should it be determined 
that the systems cannot, for whatever reason, be expected to comply with 
the Development Code, the City of Dawsonville is not obligated to accept a 
dedication of systems by a developer. 

 
(7) The City of Dawsonville shall have the right to accept any or all of the systems 

tendered by the developer with or without the other systems so tendered being 
accepted. By way of example, after tender of road, water, sewer and stormwater 
management systems by a developer, the City of Dawsonville may, in its 
discretion, elect to accept only one of the systems, a combination of the systems, 
all of the systems, or none of the systems. 

 
SECTION II: Incorporation and Repealer  
 
Except as modified herein, the remainder of the Infrastructure Dedication Ordinance of the City 
of Dawsonville is affirmed and incorporated herein. All laws and parts of law in conflict with this 
enactment are hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION III: Effective Date  
 
This ordinance shall be effective the day following its passage by the City Council of Dawsonville.  
 
  
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of _______________________, 2023.  
  
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL  
 

By:         
 
 

___________________________________ 
Mike Eason, Mayor  

 
  
 

___________________________________ 
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post #1 

 
  



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

  
___________________________________ 
William Illg, Council Member Post #2 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
John Walden, Council Member Post #3 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Mark French, Council Member Post #4 

 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY:  
 
 
  
 
___________________________________      
Beverly Banister, City Clerk  
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023: PARKING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/04/2023  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023: AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE PARKING ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 

FIRST READING: NOVEMBER 6, 2023; SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: 
DECEMBER 4, 2023 

 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
    
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE PARKING ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section II, Paragraph II of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia and Chapter 35 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia, the City Council of 
Dawsonville is empowered to adopt reasonable ordinances for local government upon matters not 
governed by general law and which are not inconsistent with the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia or the Charter of the City of Dawsonville; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is aware that, in various neighborhoods in the City of Dawsonville, 
parking on public property including on sidewalks has developed to the point that it impedes the 
flow of pedestrians who would use the sidewalks; and 
 
WHEREAS, when pedestrians are not able to use the sidewalks which were intended for their use, 
the pedestrians may have to resort to the street, creating a potentially life-threatening situation and 
increasing the danger to both the motoring and pedestrian public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the interests of public health, safety, morals, 
convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the City of Dawsonville to update the City’s 
Parking Ordinance to prohibit and provide for penalties for such conduct, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the governing body of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, does hereby amend 
its Parking Ordinance as follows:  
 
SECTION I: Parking 
 
Chapter 13 Traffic and Vehicles, Article IV Parking, Section 13-42 Parking Restrictions, of the 
Dawsonville Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by striking Section 13-42 in its entirety and 
inserting in lieu thereof a new Section 13-42 as follows: 
 

§ Sec. 13-42 Parking restrictions. 
 

(a) A parked vehicle in any parking space or parking area on public property 
shall be allowed to remain in said parking space or area until 9:00 a.m. on the day 
following the date the vehicle was parked in the parking space or area. Moving a 
vehicle from one parking space to another in the same parking area or parking lot, 
or to another parking area of the city, shall be considered the same as leaving the 
vehicle in the same parking space. For any vehicles left in a parking lot or parking 
area beyond the 9:00 a.m. deadline described, the city may utilize nonconsensual 
towing to remove the vehicles at the owner's expense. 

 

Subject Matter: Parking 
Date of First Reading: November 6, 2023 
Date of Second Reading: December 4, 2023 
Date of Adoption: 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

(b) The city may designate certain parking spaces as having a maximum 
time limit of two hours by proper signage. The city may utilize nonconsensual 
towing for any vehicles parked in designated parking spaces beyond the maximum 
time limit at the expense of the owner. 

 
(c) Other parking areas and time limits may be added to this article by 

resolution of the council. Signage designating time limits in parking areas shall be 
erected by the city. The absence of a sign in a specific area shall not invalidate any 
portion of this article. 

 
(d) Authorized and unauthorized purposes. Parking in city parking spaces 

or areas is permitted for the purpose of attending social events, city events, visiting 
offices and businesses, frequenting city facilities, including leased facilities, and for 
attendance at court and governmental functions. Use of city parking spaces or areas 
is not permitted for storage of vehicles, nor is it permitted for commercial purposes 
unless approved, in writing, by the city manager or his designee. 

 
(e) Parking on sidewalks. No person shall park a vehicle entirely or partially 

within any sidewalk located (1) on public property, including but not limited to 
public rights of way, or (2) within a residential area regardless of the public or 
private nature of the sidewalk at issue. 

 
(f) Penalties and enforcement. 
 

(1) Citations and fines - Time: The owner of a vehicle parked in a 
designated parking space in violation of the time limits shall receive a 
citation issued by the code enforcement officer or by any law enforcement 
officer. 
 

a. The fine shall be $25.00 for each two-hour violation for 
any parking space with a two-hour time limit. 

 
b. For all other parking areas, the fine shall be $100.00 per 

day, starting at 9:01 a.m. the day following the date the vehicle was 
parked until it is removed either by the owner or through 
nonconsensual towing. 

 
c. The violator may pay the fine at city hall, or may contest 

the citation at city municipal court. 
 

(2) Citations and fines - Unauthorized purpose: The owner of a 
vehicle parked in a city parking space or area for an unauthorized purpose 
shall receive a citation issued by the code enforcement officer or by any 
other law enforcement officer, the fine for which shall be $100.00 for each 
day that the violation continues. 
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

(3) Citations and fines - Parking on sidewalks: The owner of a 
vehicle parked on a sidewalk in violation of this section shall receive a 
citation issued by the code enforcement officer or by any other law 
enforcement officer, the fine shall be $100.00 for each day that the violation 
continues.  
 

(4) Nonconsensual towing: Pursuant to the towing and removal 
procedures described herein, vehicles parked in violation of this code may 
be removed and stored in lieu of or in addition to issuance of a citation and 
fine. 
 

(5) Any costs incurred by the city in enforcing this article shall be 
added to the court costs and paid in conjunction with fines assessed. 

 
SECTION II: Incorporation and Repealer  
 
Except as modified herein, the remainder of the Parking Ordinance of the City of Dawsonville is 
affirmed and incorporated herein. All laws and parts of law in conflict with this enactment are 
hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION III: Effective Date  
 
This ordinance shall be effective the day following its passage by the City Council of Dawsonville.  
 
  
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of _______________________, 2023.  
  
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL  
 

By:         
 
 

___________________________________ 
Mike Eason, Mayor  

 
  
 

___________________________________ 
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post #1 

 
  
  

___________________________________ 
William Illg, Council Member Post #2 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
John Walden, Council Member Post #3 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Mark French, Council Member Post #4 

 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY:  
 
 
  
 
___________________________________      
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk  
 


	1. .12.04.2023 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting 
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 1. 11.06.2023 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS TRAINING
	7c. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items LMIG
	7c. 2. LMIG Letter fr GDOT
	7c. 3. LMIG Letter fr COD
	7c. 4. 12.04.2023 GDOT LMIG_Affidavit and Certification
	7c. 5. 12.04.2023 GDOT LMIG_Project List
	7d. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items OPEN BK ACCT
	7d. 2. Resolution R2023-08_Open ONEGEORGIA AUTHORITY Bank Acct 
	7e. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items DHM AGREEMENT
	7e. 2. REVISED DHM AGREEMENT
	8. 1. Executive Summary For DDA APPOINTMENT
	9. 1. Executive Summary For  FINANCIAL AUDIT PRESENTATION
	10. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA__DAWSONVILLE CHARITY POKER ROOM_PENDER_
	10. 2. 10.25.2023 Request for Use of City Property
	10. 3. Staff Recomendation for Poker Room Parking Lot
	11. 1. Executive Summary PARKING
	11. 2. HOA RESPONSES
	12. 1. Executive Summary REST MOD AT MUSEUM
	13. 1. Executive Summary LEASE FOR RESTAURANT
	13. 2. Lease Agreement.Station House
	LEASE AGREEMENT
	WITNESSETH:
	3. Rent. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor a base rent amount as rent for the Restaurant Space during the Lease Term which will be as follows:
	LESSOR:
	LESSEE: THE STATION HOUSE
	RESTAURANT INC.
	PERSONAL GUARANTY


	14. 1. Executive Summary GRANDADDY MIMMS LEASE
	15. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items INFRASTRUCTURE DED ORD
	15. 2. 08-2023 Amended Infrastructure Dedication Ordinance
	16. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items PARKING ORD 
	16. 2. 09-2023 Revised parking ordinance

	Date of Application: December 4, 2023
	Name of local government: City of Dawsonville
	Address: 415 Hwy 53 E, Suite 100, Dawsonville, GA 30534
	Contact Person and Title: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director
	Contact Persons Phone Number: (706) 531-6454
	Contact Persons Fax Number: (706) 265-4214
	Contact Persons Email: roads@dawsonville-ga.gov
	I: John Walden
	Name the: Mayor Pro-Tem
	Local Government who being duly sworn do swear that the information given: City of Dawsonville
	Text2: Yes
	APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20: 24
	Print: John Walden
	Date: December 4, 2023
	EVerify Number: 100707
	day of: 
	20: 
	My Commission Expires: 
	21: 
	FY: 2024
	COUNTY  CITY: City of Dawsonville
	Road NameRow1: Maple Street South
	BeginningRow1: Route 53
	EndingRow1: End of Maple Street South
	Length MilesRow1: 0.62
	Description of WorkRow1: Soil cement road and repave and repair sidewalks
	Project CostRow1: approx.$500,000
	Project Let DateRow1: FY2024
	Road NameRow2: 
	BeginningRow2: 
	EndingRow2: 
	Length MilesRow2: 
	Description of WorkRow2: 
	Project CostRow2: 
	Project Let DateRow2: 
	Road NameRow3: 
	BeginningRow3: 
	EndingRow3: 
	Length MilesRow3: 
	Description of WorkRow3: 
	Project CostRow3: 
	Project Let DateRow3: 
	Road NameRow4: 
	BeginningRow4: 
	EndingRow4: 
	Length MilesRow4: 
	Description of WorkRow4: 
	Project CostRow4: 
	Project Let DateRow4: 
	Road NameRow5: 
	BeginningRow5: 
	EndingRow5: 
	Length MilesRow5: 
	Description of WorkRow5: 
	Project CostRow5: 
	Project Let DateRow5: 
	Road NameRow6: 
	BeginningRow6: 
	EndingRow6: 
	Length MilesRow6: 
	Description of WorkRow6: 
	Project CostRow6: 
	Project Let DateRow6: 
	Road NameRow7: 
	BeginningRow7: 
	EndingRow7: 
	Length MilesRow7: 
	Description of WorkRow7: 
	Project CostRow7: 
	Project Let DateRow7: 
	Road NameRow8: 
	BeginningRow8: 
	EndingRow8: 
	Length MilesRow8: 
	Description of WorkRow8: 
	Project CostRow8: 
	Project Let DateRow8: 
	Road NameRow9: 
	BeginningRow9: 
	EndingRow9: 
	Length MilesRow9: 
	Description of WorkRow9: 
	Project CostRow9: 
	Project Let DateRow9: 
	Road NameRow10: 
	BeginningRow10: 
	EndingRow10: 
	Length MilesRow10: 
	Description of WorkRow10: 
	Project CostRow10: 
	Project Let DateRow10: 


